Request for Proposal (RFP)

ISS Mission Integration Contract (MIC)
 Questions and Answers

Note:

This document answers questions received in response to the MIC RFP.  Similar questions have been consolidated to form one question.

Question F.3
Reference: Section L, Task Order 6 – 2.2.10: Joint Cargo Certification Team (JCCT), pgs. L-A3-43, 44 and Section C, SOW 2.1.5.1, pg. C-17
Question: The JCCT SOW 2.1.5.1 has been updated to include all present day functions of the JCCT.  However, the Task Order for JCCT (TO6 – 2.2.10) has not.  Is it the Government’s intention to update the JCCT Task Order?
Answer F.3
The Government will update the JCCT Task Order in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.4
Reference: Section C, SOW, Section 1.1.3, Page C-5: The contractor shall establish and maintain a Quality Management System (QMS) that complies with the SAE Aerospace Standard AS9100C, Quality Management Systems – Requirements for Aviation, Space and Defense Organizations.  Third party certification/registration is not required.
Question: SAE has not yet released the AS9100C standard, nor has the auditor community been trained in compliance with that standard.  While we realize that certification to this standard is not required, is it the Government’s intent for the contractor to comply with the unreleased standard or is the AS9100B standard the actual intended standard?
Answer F.4
According to SAE, the AS9100C standard was released in 2009 and is available on their website, http://www.sae.org/technical/standards/AS9100C.  It is the Government’s intent for the contractor to comply with the released standard.
Question F.5
Reference: Section L, Task Order 6 – 2.2.6 – Bilateral Hardware and Software Exchange Agreements, Lists, and Schedules (BHSEALS), pg. L-A3-41.  The reference to International Shipping has been removed from the SOW and the Task Order.

Question: Is it the Government’s intention to eliminate International Shipping from the Task Order and the new MIC contract?  Note that the ISS Shipping Coordinator function and the associated MIDAS database is directly linked to the BHSEALS agreements.
Answer F.5
International Shipping execution is being moved to the Cargo Mission Contract.  The BHSEALS agreements will stay in the Mission Integration Contract as well as the Moscow shipping coordination function.
Question F.6
Reference: Section C, SOW 1.3.5 Book Coordination pgs. C-10-11; Attachment L-10 Work Load Assumptions (WLA) for 1.3.5.  The list of books in the SOW and the WLA for 1.3.5 do not match.  Also, SSP 50521 and 50502 are coordinated in the SOW 1.3.5 (firm fixed price) AND also listed in Section 2.2.2.1 (Imagery Process) of Task Order 6 (IDIQ).  Additionally, the MIDS Blank Book (BB) and Mission Integration Template (MIT) are not mentioned in SOW 1.3.5, but are mentioned in the WLA for 1.3.5.

Question: What is the Government’s preference on bidding these books – SOW or Task Order?  Should the MIT and MIDS BB be added to the list of books coordinated in SOW 1.3.5?
Answer F.6
SSP 50521 and SSP 50502 will stay in the Firm Fixed Price portion of the SOW, removed from the task order and the WLA will be updated in an amendment to the RFP.  The MIT and MIDS BB will be added to the task order in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.7
Reference: Section L, Task Order 1, Section 2.1.1.2.1 PAL, IDRD, CSRD, and PIER Documentation, pg. L-A3-6.

Question: Paragraph g) states, “For the PAL…”  Should this read “For the PIER…”?

Answer F.7
This should read “PIER.”   This will be corrected in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.8
Reference: Section L, Task Order 5, Section 2.2.6 MIDAS Sustaining, pgs. L-A3-34, 35; Section C, SOW 2.1.3.5, pgs. C-15, 16.

Question: In the final RFP, the MIDAS work was moved from SOW 1.3.1 to SOW 2.1.3.5 and Task Order 5.  However, the work was actually distributed to those two sections instead of being placed equally in both locations.  SOW 1.3.1 of the Draft RFP included MIDAS Sustaining, MIDAS System Administration/User, and Parts Data Maintenance.  In the Final RFP, SOW 2.1.3.5 contains only MIDAS Sustaining – the software maintenance component, Task Order 5 section 2.2.6 contains MIDAS System Administration/User and Parts Data Maintenance.  Should all 3 elements of MIDAS Sustaining be defined in both SOW 2.1.3.5 and Task Order 5, Section 2.2.6?  Please update the SOW and/or task order for consistency to ensure MIDAS software and support functions are adequately addressed.
Answer F.8
MIDAS System Administration/User and Parts Data Maintenance will be in SOW 1.3.7 and MIDAS Sustaining will be in SOW 2.1.3.5 and its associated task order.  This will be updated in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.9
Reference: Section C, SOW 2.2.1 Language Services, pg. C-18 and Section L, Task Order 7, 2.2.1 Language Services, pgs. L-A3-46, 47; Section C, SOW 2.2.2 Russian Logistics, pg. C-19 and Section L, Task Order 8, 2.2.2 Russian Logistics, pg. L-A3-55; Section C, SOW 2.3, Russian Segment Services, pg. C-20 and Section L, Task Order 9, 2.2.2 Russian Segment Activities, pg. L-A3-62.

Question: Can you please correct the numbering in Task Order #9 (Russian Segment Services).  It does not properly increment up from the previous task order consistent with the SOW outline.
Answer F.9
The Government does not intend for the SOW numbering and the task order numbering to be correlated. 
Question F.10
Reference: Attachment J-1, MIC-PC-01, Financial Management Reporting, first submission date, pg. J-A1-07; Attachment L-10 Work Load Assumptions (WLA) baseline submission date.

Question: The DRD refers to a first submission date as “30 days after contract award.”  The WLA for 1.2.1.1 states “Baseline within 30 days of Authorization to Proceed.”  Is contract award date the same as the authorization to proceed date?  If not, which date is correct for DRD MIC-PC-01?
Answer F.10
The correct date is 30 days after contract award.  The WLA will be corrected in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.11
Reference: Attachment J-1, DRD MIC-PC-01 Attachment 1, Financial Management Reporting, pg. J-A1-29.

Question: The first line under the Financial Management Reporting header states “The due dates reflect the date the financial management reports are loaded into the Identity Management System (IDMS)…”  What is the Identity Management System and where in the RFP or source documents is this system discussed?
Answer F.11
This is a typographical error.  The RFP will be amended to read “The due dates reflect the date the financial management reports are loaded into the Electronic Data Management System (EDMS)…”
Question F.12
Reference: Government Furnished Equipment

Question: The software applications developed and sustained by MIC are currently implemented on the PI&C infrastructure, using in some cases software licenses provided by PI&C.  This appears to be omitted from the Final RFP.  Please update the reference materials within the RFP to indicate applicability of PI&C infrastructure and software licenses, or clarify in the SOW that MIC should bid their own infrastructure and software licenses.  Is it the Government’s intention that MIC bid their own infrastructure and COTS software licenses normally provided by PI&C and/or through NASA site-licenses?
Answer F.12
All PI&C infrastructure and software licenses that are provided to the current MIC contractor will be provided to the MIC Follow-On contractor.  Section J, Attachment 8 will reflect this in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.13
Reference: Section J, Government Furnished Data, Attachment 8, pg. 1.
Question: The On Orbit Manifest Request Tracking Tool is listed in this GFD file.  To our knowledge this tool does not exist and any functionality that may have existed in it was subsumed by MIDAS years ago.  Is this a new On Orbit Manifest Request Tracking tool that is expected to be used for execution of MIC work?  Please clarify the details of this tool, or remove from the GFD list.
Answer F.13
This will be removed from the GFD list in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.14
Reference: Section J, Government Furnished Data, Attachment 8, pg. 1.

Question: The Common Schedules Database is listed in this GFD file.  The Common Schedules Database is no longer used in the ISS Program and has been removed from application competency requirements for MIC phase-in.  Please remove from the GFD list.
Answer F.14
This will be removed from the GFD list in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.15
Reference: Section C, Statement of Work, Section 2.1.3.5, pg. C-15.  The contractor shall sustain the MIDAS in accordance with latest delivery of DRD MIC-MI-02, Requirements Document for the Mission Integration Database Applications System (MIDAS).
Question: In the Government’s response to the anonymous question regarding MIDAS Application Service Requests (ASRs) and their use to define releases and future work, the Government stated in Answer 3: “The MIDAS Open New Requirements list is dynamic and changing thus not suited for establishing an estimate.  The expectation will be two major releases per year with 27 +/- 3 ASRs per release.  This will be reflected in the Final RFP.”  The Final RFP does not reflect this release expectation or ASR level.  Did the Government intend for Answer 3 to be omitted from the Final RFP or should bidders include this Answer 3 guidance as part of their bid response?
Answer F.15
MIDAS Sustaining will be moved to the IDIQ section of the SOW with an expectation of two major software releases per year and up to 12 minor maintenance releases per year.  This will be reflected in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.16
Reference: Section I.1, FAR Clause 52.232-1, Payments (referenced on pg. I-4) states in part that “The Government shall pay the Contractor, upon submission of proper invoices or vouchers, the prices stipulated in this contract for supplies delivered and accepted or services rendered and accepted…”

Questions: (a) How often may vouchers be submitted?  (b) What constitutes acceptance of services?  (c) Recommend that DRD MIC-PM-02 be changed to Data Type 1 so that acceptance of the submission of the Integrated Management Review package could be used to document the acceptance of the Completion Form services.  This could then be billed on a monthly basis as 1/12th of the annual proposed value and could also eliminate the requirement for the Format 3 reporting of actuals and forecast for the Completion Form.  This appears to be a simpler approach, more aligned with the firm fixed price contract type and would not impact the invoicing of the IDIQ which remains based on actual hours worked by SLC.
Answer F.16
(a) Vouchers may be submitted once each month, or at more frequent intervals, if approved by the Contracting Officer.  The RFP will be amended to clarify this.  
(b) Contracting Officer approval of the invoice constitutes acceptance of services.
(c) The Government does not intend to tie acceptance of services to a DRD.  See answer F.17 for clarification regarding reporting of Completion Form services in Format 3.

Question F.17
Reference: Section J-1, DRDs, MIC-PC-01, Financial Management Reporting, Format 3, pg. J-A1-32.

Question: Format 3 requires actual dollars, hours, and WYE along with the forecast for the firm fixed price, completion form effort in WBS elements 1.1.1, 1.2.1, 1.2.5, 1.3.1, 1.4.2, and 6.4, along with some of the IDIQ WBS elements, and requires a total for the firm fixed price portion of the contract.  Is it the Government’s intent to require Format 3 reporting of actual dollars, hours, and WYE’s, and the required forecasting of the same data, for the firm fixed price portion of the contract?
Answer F.17
The Formats in Attachment 1 of MIC-PC-01 are example formats and alternate contractor formats will be considered.  The intent of Format 3 is to report actual dollars, hours, and WYEs, along with forecasts, for the IDIQ work, along with the actual dollars billed to the Government for the firm fixed price work.  It is not the Government’s intent to require reporting of actual dollars, hours, and WYEs for the firm fixed price work.  Overall WYEs for the contract will be reported in MIC-PC-02, Workforce Reports.
Question F.18
Reference: Section I, I.1, Listing of Clauses Incorporated by Reference, Clause 52.222-43, Fair Labor Standards Act and Service Contract Act – Price Adjustment (Multiple Year and Option Contracts), pg. I-3.

Question: Should the correct date for this clause be SEP 2009 instead of NOV 2006?
Answer F.18
Yes, the RFP will be amended to reflect the corrected date of SEP 2009.

Question F.19
Reference: Section H, H.18 Economic Price Adjustment – Wage Rates Controlled by a Foreign Government (CLIN 2 IDIQ Rate Table – Russian Rates), sub paragraphs (b), (b)(1), (b)(2), and (e), pgs. H-22, H-23.

Question: We suggest the following modification to the wording of Clause H.18(b) to more precisely clarify its intent.  We propose the same clarification for Clauses H.18(b)(1), H.18(b)(2), and H.18(e).  “If the Russian Government revises wage rates, mandatory wage premiums, mandatory employee benefits, or mandatory employee-related taxes, the Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price and shall modify the contract to the extent that the contractor’s actual costs of performing this contract are increased or decreased, as a direct result of the revision…”
Answer F.19
The Government does not intend to modify the Economic Price Adjustment – Wage Rates Controlled by a Foreign Government (CLIN 2 IDIQ Rate Table – Russian Rates) clause at this time.
Question F.20
Reference: Section H, H.19 Exchange Rate Adjustment – Labor (CLIN 2 IDIQ Rate Table – Russian Rates), paragraphs H.19(c) and H.19(d)(1)(i), pg. H-24.

Question: Clause H.19(c) specifies that the exchange rate on a single date, “the date a task order proposal is received,” shall be used as the comparison value for adjusting task order rates.  We would like to point out that the exchange rate on any given single day is not an accurate indicator of the recent exchange rate trend.  (Market news and political/current events cause significant single-day or short-term variations from the recent norm.)  Therefore, we suggest use of an average exchange rate, such as the average for the 30 days or the 60 days preceding the date of the task order, which would serve as a more reliable comparison value.
Answer F.20
The Government does not intend to modify the Exchange Rate Adjustment – Labor (CLIN 2 IDIQ Rate Table – Russian Rates) clause at this time.
Question F.21
Reference: Section H, H.19 Exchange Rate Adjustment – Labor (CLIN 2 IDIQ Rate Table – Russian Rates), paragraphs H.19(c) and H.19(d)(1)(i), pg. H-24.

Question: Clause H.19(d)(1)(i) specifies a change threshold of plus or minus 10% of the baseline exchange rate before any rate adjustments shall be executed, which establishes a total band of 20% of exchange rate risk distributed between the Government and the small-business contractor.  We suggest modifying the clause to specify a smaller risk band of 10%, with a change threshold of plus or minus 5%, which provides better price risk protection to the Government and is more appropriate for a Total Small Business contract.
Answer F.21
The Government does not intend to modify the Exchange Rate Adjustment – Labor (CLIN 2 IDIQ Rate Table – Russian Rates) clause at this time.

Question F.22
Reference: Attachment L-3, Task Order #5 Cargo Planning, 2.2.5 On-Orbit Consumables, 2.2.5.1 Crew Provisioning Management, pg. L-A3-32: f) Perform the following mission and post-mission activities: 4) Inventory returned crew provisions and retain records of actual usage.  Update launch and return requirements to correct for actual usage.
Question: Nominal Crew Provisioning hardware since 2004 is no longer returned due to costs.  Crew Preference items are private and handed over to USA/FCE and inventoried by CB.  Should requirement f)4) be deleted, or is NASA leveeing a new requirement?
Answer F.22
Requirements regarding returned crew provisions will be deleted in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.23
Reference: Attachment L-3, Task Order #5 Cargo Planning, 2.2.5 On-Orbit Consumables, 2.2.5.2 Housekeeping (HK) Integration, pg. L-A3-34: c) Provide detailed HK consumable requirements to NASA and supplying contractor and coordinate fit checks, packing, bench review, and delivery requirements with NASA and the Government Furnished Equipment (GFE) sustaining contractors.

Question: HK does not perform fit checks on HK hardware.  Should requirement c) be deleted, or is NASA leveeing a new requirement?
Answer F.23
All requirements regarding HK “fit checks” will be removed in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.24
Reference: Section L, Task Order #4 Space Shuttle Visiting Vehicle Integration, 2.2.6 Certificate of Flight Readiness (CoFR) Process and 2.2.7 Launch Package Services, pgs. L-A3-24, L-A3-25.

Question: These tasks appear to be an expansion of the launch package role with respect to CoFR and flight specific documentation.  Is that the Government’s intention?
Answer F.24
It is not the Government’s intention to expand the launch package role with respect to CoFR and flight specific documentation.  Task Order #4 will be updated for clarification in an amendment to the RFP.
Question F.25
Reference: Section L.19.6.3 IDIQ Workbook Instructions, Subparagraph 4, Task Order Pricing Templates

Question: There is no provision for pricing either the overtime hours and costs or the shift premium hours and costs which will be required both in Russia and in the U.S.  Console support is required during missions on a 24/7 basis and is subject to shift premium but this cannot be included in the pricing templates.  This is just one example and does not, in any way, address the rigorous and multiple shift premium and overtime requirements imposed by Russian law.  An alternative method to solve this problem might be to include additional SLCs with a designation within the title that denotes either overtime or shift premium (and in the case of Russian labor, shift 1, shift 2, shift 3, etc.) only on the TOPT worksheet.  These SLCs would not be added to any of the other pricing templates or to the Section B IDIQ tables since provision has already been made to include just a percentage application against the straight time rates in Section B for each of these categories.  Is this approach acceptable to the Government?
Answer F.25
In accordance with the RFP, rows may be added to the IDIQ Rates Development Template – Contractor Specific, and any other pricing templates, as needed, to reflect your accounting system, management, and technical approach.  Also, each offeror is allowed to add SLCs to Table B.4, or add in the bottom portion of Table B.4 items such as multiple shift premiums.
